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The Honorable William H. Webster
1850 K Street, NW, Suite 1100

Washington, DC 20006

Re: APPLICATION 157 OF THE INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD

Dear Judge Preska:

I transmit herewith one original and one copy of Application
157 of the Independent Review Board, submitting the Opinion and
Decision regarding Bernard Piscopo, approved by the IRB, to Your.
Honor for review, and if appropriate, to be "so ordered."

In addition to the Application, enclosed please find the
original and one copy of:

(a) the February 2, 2012, Opinion and Decision of the IRB;

(b) an Acknowledgment of Receipt; and

(c) an Affidavit of Service.

If you find it appropriate, I respectfully request that a member
of Your Honor's staff file the original Application, Opinion and
Decision, Acknowledgment of Receipt and Affidavit of Service with
the Clerk's office.

Respectfully submitted,

JJC:cft
By:

Members of the
Independen~ew Board

Jo~ronin, Jr.
Administrator

Enclos~fs~ant to the Consent Order of the United States District Court, S.D.N.Y.
United States -v- International Brotherhood of Teamsters 88 CIV. 4486 (LAP)



cc: Tara M. La Marte, AUSA
Charles M. Carberry, Esq.
Bradley T. Raymond, Esq.
Bernard Piscopo
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
88 CIV. 4486 (LAP)

Plaintiff,

v.
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF
TEAMSTERS, _e_t_a_I.

Defendants.

.~
• <

APPLICATION 157 OF THE
INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD
-~ OPINION AND DECISION OF
THE INDEPENDENT REVIEW
BOARD IN THE MATTER OF
BERNARD PISCOPO

Pursuant to Paragraph O. of the Rules and Procedures for

Operation of the Independent Review Board ("IRB") for the

International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IBT") ("IRB Rules"),

Application is made by the IRB for ruling by the Honorable

Loretta A. Preska, United States District Judge for the Southern

District of New York, on the issues considered by the IRB, on the

charges filed against Bernard Piscopo ("Piscopo"), a member of
Local 82.

In the IRB's October 13, 2010 Investigative Report, Piscopo

was charged with bringing reproach upon the IBT in violation of the

IBT Constitution by killing a man with a weapon while an IBT member,
evidenced by his conviction for manslaughter.

By letter of February 11, 2011, the IRB informed Piscopo that

since under the law, he was estopped from collaterally attacking the

facts underlying his conviction, it would not hold a hearing on the
direct case.



Piscopo was granted two 60-day continuances, the first on

March 16, 2011 and the second on June 15, 2011 so that he could

supplement the record with any additional evidence he could

offer. In response to the first 60-day continuance, Piscopo by

letter dated May 9, 2011 submitted three letters from members of

Local 82. In light of his conviction, the facts of which cannot

be contested, these letters do not rebut the fact that killing a

man with a weapon is reproachful conduct. Since no further

correspondence was received from Piscopo by August 15, 2011,

after which date he was advised no further adjournment would be

provided to him, the IRB proceeded to prepare its opinion and

decision.

Accordingly, Piscopo is hereafter permanently expelled from

holding membership in Local 82, the IBT and IBT-affiliated

entities and permanently barred from holding office or employment

(including as an independent contractor or consultant) with Local

82, the IBT and all affiliated entities. Piscopo is permanently

barred from seeking or accepting from the IBT or any IBT

affiliated entity any salary, gratuities, "gifts, severance

payments, allowances, fees, benefit payments or contributions or

other compensation of any kind from Local 82 or other lBT

affiliated entities, except that he may receive any pension,

vacation or other benefits from existing plans or programs
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maintained by Local 82 or other IBT affiliated entities which had

vested or accrued prior to his expulsion from membership.

Enclosed with our February 2, 2012, Opinion and Decision is the

October 13, 2010, IRB Investigative Report (Exhibit A) with Exhibits

1 - 9 (Appendix to Exhibit A) .

It is respectfully requested that an Order be entered

affirming the IRB's February 2, 2012, Opinion and Decision if

Your Honor finds it appropriate.

Dated: February 2, 2012
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----------------------------
IN RE:

BERNARD PISCOPO

----------------------------
PROCEDURAL HISTORY

OPINION AND DECISION
OF THE INDEPENDENT
REVIEW BOARD

On October 13, 2010, the Independent Review Board ("IRB")

recommended in an Investigative Report to the International

Brotherhood of Teamsters (IBT) General President James Hoffa

that a charge be filed against Local 82 member Bernard Piscopo

("Piscopo") for bringing reproach upon the IBT in violation of

the IBT Constitution by killing a man with a weapon while an IBT

member, as evidenced by his conviction for manslaughter. The

IRB Investigative Report was forwarded to General President

Hoffa and piscopo with supporting exhibits.

On october 29, 2010 the General President filed the charge

and referred the matter to the IRB for adjudication. On

February 11, 2011, the IRB notified Piscopo by letter that,

since under the law, he was estopped from collaterally attacking

the facts underlying his conviction, it would not hold a hearing

on the direct case. By letter of March 16, 2011, Piscopo was

advised that he could supplement the record with any additional

evidence he wished to offer. At Piscopo's request, an

adjournment was granted until May 15, 2011 for him to do so.

piscopo by letter dated May 9, 2011, submitted three letters

from members of Local 82.
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FACTS

Piscopo was charged on October 29, 2010 with conducting

himself in a manner to bring reproach upon the IBT in violation

of Article II, section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b) (1) and

(2) of the IBT Constitution by committing the felony of

manslaughter while an IBT member.

Piscopo was a member of Local 82 in Boston, Massachusetts.

(Ex. 2)1 According to IBT records, Piscopo joined Local 82 in

October 1999. (Ex.2) On May 16, 2007, he paid dues to Local 82

for May 2007. (Ex~2) As discussed below, on June 17, 2007,

Piscopo killed a man. (Exs.3-6) Three days later on June 20,

2007, picsopo took a withdrawal card from Local 82. (Ex. 2)

On September 13, 2007, Piscopo deposited his withdrawal

card. (Ex.2) He continued to pay dues to Local 82 through July

2009. (Ex. 2) On October 14, 2009, the day after his conviction

for voluntary manslaughter, Piscopo again took a withdrawal

card. (Ex. 2 & 4)2

On June 17, 2007, while a member of IBT, Piscopo assaulted

and killed Adam Rich, a 26 year old, in a South Boston Bar.

(Exs.2-6) On August 13, 2007, Piscopo was indicted for second

1 "Ex." Refers to exhibits included with IRB's investigative report
recommending a charge be filed.
2 Pursuant to Article XIX, Section l(g) of the IBT Constitution, charges can
be filed against an IBT member who has been issued a withdrawal card. (Ex.?)
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degree murder. (Ex.3)3 On October 13, 2009, Piscopo was

convicted after trial of voluntary manslaughter. (Exs. 4 & 6)

There is no statutory definition of manslaughter in

Massachusetts. Voluntary manslaughter is a defense to murder

and is a lesser included offense. As this was a bar fight,

Massachusetts common law allows a conviction of manslaughter.

See, e.g., Commonwealth v. Espada 450 Mass. 687,880 N.E. 2d 795,

804-806 (2008) ("[v]oluntary manslaughter is an unlawful killing

'arising not from malice, but from ...sudden passion induced by

reasonable provocation, sudden combat ...'" (citations omitted) i

Commonwealth v. Brum, 441 Mass. 199, 804 N.E. 2d 902, 907-908

(2004). Manslaughter carries a maximum sentence of twenty years

imprisonment. On october 14, 2009, Piscopo was sentenced to six

years in prison. (Exs. 4 & 6)4

piscopo is collaterally estopped from contesting the facts

underlying his conviction. United States v. IBT [Friedman and

Hughes], 905 F.2d 610, 620-622 (2d. Cir. 1990) i United States v.

IBT {Vitale) , 775 F.Supp. 90, 95 (S.D.N.Y. 1991) aff'd slip op.

Docket No. 91-6154 (2d Cir.Oct 31 1991) ("IBT members are

collaterally stopped from contesting the underlying facts of

3 Piscopo was also indicted for assaulting another individual, Thomas Browne,
with a knife on the same day. (Ex.3) piscopo was acquitted of the charge.
(Exs. 4 & 6)
4 In 2008, while awaiting trial, Piscopo worked approximately 1,197 hours as a
Local 82 member, mostly in the trade show industry. (Exs. 8-9) Between
January 2009 and October 2009, when he was convicted of manslaughter, Piscopo
worked approximately 1,156 hours as a Local 82 member. (Exs. 8-9)
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their convictions in response to charges filed by tne

Investigations Officer.")

ARGUMENT

Teamsters who have committed a criminal offense while a

member of the IBT have been found to bring reproach upon the IBT

through such conduct. ~., United States v. IBT {Friedman and

Hughes}, 905 F.2d at 623 (Hughes' non-IBT criminal conduct was

appropriately subject of a reproach charge) i United States v.

IBT {Vitale], 775 F. Supp. 90 (S.D.C.Y.) 1991) (Vitale's conduct

as evidenced by two felony convictions brought reproach upon the

IBT); United States v. IBT [Senese and Talerico] , 745 F.Supp.

908, 917 (S.D.N.Y. 1990) aff'd, 941 F.2d 1292 (2d Cir. 1991).

Cert denied, 502 U.S. 1091 (1992) (Talerico's criminal contempt

brought reproach upon the IBT). The reproachful nature of

felonious criminal conduct is underlined by a whereas clause in

the March 14, 1989 Consent Order that states,

"WHEREAS, the union defendants agree that there should

be no criminal element ...of any part of the IBT"

As the Second Circuit noted in United States v. IBT

[Mireles], 51 Fed. Appx. 25 (2d Cir. 2002)

Pursuant to the Consent Decree, the IRB's authority is co-
extensive with that of the IBT General President and
General Executive Board ("GEB") under the IBT Constitution.
Since the IBT Constitution authorizes the IBT General
President and GEB "to interpret and apply" the IBT
Constitution and to "decide all questions of law
thereunder," the IRB's authority "necessarily includes the
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final authority to decide what constitutes an offense
subject to discipline under the IBT Constitution." ...
Therefore, the scope of the IRB's power under the Consent
Decree is not limited to violations of federal labor or
criminal law. The Consent Decree recognizes that "conduct .
. . that brings reproach upon (the IBT)" in violation of
Article II, Section 2{a) and Article XIX, Sections
7{b) (l)and (2) of the IBT Constitution, is within the
(IRB's) investigatory and decisional authority."

Id. at 26-27 (citations omitted).

Reproachful conduct does not have to be in violation of

labor or criminal laws or a specific provision of the IBT

Constitution. U.S. v.IBT [Ligurotis], 814 F.Supp. 1165, 1182-

1183 (S.D.N.Y. 1193) (implying a violation of criminal laws is

reproachful). Given the nature of Piscopo's conduct, killing a

person with a weapon in a fight, the IRB may find that conduct

reproachful. See, U.S. v. IBT [Friedman and Hughes], 905 F.2d

at 619. In light of the pre Consent Order history of the IBT,

the goals of the Consent Order would be undercut if the IBT

ignored violent felonies its members committed and if such

conduct by its members was found not to bring reproach upon the

IBT.

The respondent offered three letters from the IBT members

attesting to his character. In light of the conviction, the

facts which can not be contested, these letters do not rebut the

fact that killing a man with a weapon is reproachful conduct.

In a letter of October 29, 2010 to the IRB, the IBT General

Counsel presented arguments as to why the reproach clause should
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not apply. He argued, relying on newspaper stories,

7

that



Title 29 U.S.C.~504 imposes a ban of 13 years from being a

union officer or management consultant on individuals who commit

specified crimes, including "assault which inflicts grievous

bodily injury." Piscopo's manslaughter conviction would fall

within Section 504; Telerico's criminal contempt conviction

would not. Piscopo's more serious criminal conduct brings
,

reproach as did Telerico's criminal contempt conviction. If the

conduct is serious enough to trigger government bans from

working for a union or management, it falls within the range of

conduct that brings reproach upon the IBT, and for which the

union may discipline a member. Piscopo's conduct when a member,

while not IBT related, brought reproach upon the IBT.

One of the concerns the General Counsel raised was that

finding criminal conduct by a member reproachful might impose "

. problematic and uncertain 'duty to investigate' obligations

on union officials throughout the IBT." (Letter at 5) The duty

to investigate has been found violated when a union official had

actual knowledge of allegations of serious wrongdoing by another

official and failed to take reasonable steps under the

circumstances to investigate the allegation. For example, in

United States v. IBT [Sansone], 981 F.2d 1362 (2d Cir.1992) , the

principal officer of the Local failed to take adequate action,

including an investigation and obtaining publicly available

information, when an allegation was made in a front page

8



newspaper story that a fellow board member was the consigliere

of the st. Louis LCN family. As a consequence, he brought

reproach upon the IBT. E.g., United States v. IBT [Crapanzano

and Lanza], 803 F.Supp.740 (S.D.N.Y.1992) (failure to

investigate reported extensive public allegations of LCN

connections of fellow officers) i United States v. IBT [Ross],

826 F. supp. 749, 756-758 (S.D.N.Y.) 1993) (failure to

investigate criminal conviction and Department of Labor

investigation of fellow officer) .

Since there is no charge involving the duty to investigate

alleged here, there is no need for the IRB to address the

General Counsel's "slippery slope" argument in an advisory

opinion. Moreover, IBT members are explicitly prohibited under

Article XIX, Section 7(b) (11) of the IBT Constitution from

committing over 40 different crimes found in 18 U.S.C. ~ 1961.

To the extent under any particular circumstance there is a duty

to investigate a member's criminal conduct, it already exists.

The General Counsel also argued that there is no point to a

sanction here, since under 29 U.S.C. ~ 504 Piscopo would be

barred from being a union officer or employee for 13 years

following his incarceration. Also under labor law he would be

able to work under a Local 82 contract, even if not a union

member. (Letter at 6)) As a consequence, he argues, no action

should be taken against Piccopo. However, if Piscopo's conduct
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was reproachful, unless a sanction is imposed, Piscopo will be

able to participate in union affairs, including being appointed,

for example, to act as Sergeant at Arms at union meetings and

contract votes.

CONCLUSION

The preponderance of the evidence established that Piscopo

brought reproach upon the lBT, in violation of the lBT

Constitution, for killing a man with a weapon while an IBT

member, as evidenced by his conviction for manslaughter.

Accordingly, Piscopo is permanently expelled from

membership in Local 82, the lBT and lBT affiliated entities, and

he is permanently barred from holding office or employment

(including as an independent contractor or consultant) with

Local 82, the lBT and all lBT affiliated entities. He may not

receive any payments, salary, gratuities, gifts, severance

payments, allowances, fees, benefit payments or contributions or

any other compensation of any kind from Local 82 or other lBT

affiliated entities, except that he may receive any pension,

vacation or other benefits from existing plans or programs
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maintained by Local 82 or other IBT affiliated entities which

had vested or accrued prior to his expulsion from membership.

Dated: February 2, 2012
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Respectfully Submitted,

Members of the
Independent Review
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

v.

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF
TEAMSTERS, et ale

Defendants.

88 Civ. 4486 (LAP)
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT
OF THE OPINION AND
DECISION OF THE
INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD
IN THE MATTER OF
BERNARD PISCOPO

This Court hereby acknowledges that the Opinion and Decision
of the IRB of Application 157 of the Independent Review Board ("IRB")
for the International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IBT") has been
received by this Court, and that this Court has caused to be filed
the original documents concerning the Opinion and Decision of
Application 157 of the IRB with the Clerk of the Court of the Southern
District of New York.

This Court further certifies that the instant ACknowledgment
of Receipt ("the Acknowledgment") has been filed with the Clerk of
the Court of the Southern District of New York, and that a copy of
the Acknowledgment has been forwarded to the following:

John J. Cronin, Jr.
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 528
Washington, DC 20001
Administrator of the Independent Review Board

Bernard Piscopo W-95237
MCI Shirley Facility
P.O. Box 1218
Shirley, MA 01464

Dated: New York, New York
_______ , 2001

U.S.D.J.



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

v.
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF
TEAMSTERS, et al.

Defendants.

88 Civ. 4486 (LAP)
AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE

Joseph D. Comtois hereby deposes and says:

1. I am the Assistant to the Administrator in the office
of the Administrator of the Independent Review Board. On
February 2, 2012, I caused to be delivered via UPS Ground to the
Honorable Loretta A. Preska one executed original and one copy of
Application 157, the executed original and one copy of the
Opinion and Decision of the IRB, and the original and one copy of
the Acknowledgment of Receipt.

2. I also caused a copy of Application 157 along with the
enclosures to be delivered to:

Tara La Morte, AUSA, via UPS Ground
Charles M. Carberry, Esq., via UPS Ground
Bradley T. Raymond, Esq.,via Hand Delivery
Bernard Piscopo, Member Local 82, via USPS RRRR

~.J2.~sep D. Comtols
Sworn to and subscribed
before me thist..l)d, day

Of~U7 2012

gn~"Q.~
JOANNE C. BATZ

NOTARY PUBLIC DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
My Commission Expires March 14, 2012


